

# USER MANUAL ICS 6200 Call Logging Interface



NO	INIT	DATE	CHAPTERS	VERSION	REASON FOR CHANGE
0	K.A.T.	01.09.14	All	А	Initial release
1	HKL	6.8.19	All	В	Doc no. A100K11943 / 4000089459
2					
3					
4					
5					
6					
7					
8					
9					
10					
11					
12					
13					
14					
15					
16					
17					
18					
19					
20					

### **Amendment Record**

The information in this book has been carefully checked and is believed to be accurate. However, no responsibility is assumed for inaccuracies.

Zenitel AS reserves the right to make changes without further notice to any products or modules described herein to improve reliability, function or design. Zenitel AS does not assume any liability arising out of the application or use of the described product.

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

<u></u>	
<u>1 C</u>	ALL LOGGING WEB INTERFACE1-2
1.1	LOGGING ON TO THE CALL LOGGING WEB INTERFACE
1.2	USERS / PINS PAGE1-2
1.2.1	USERS
1.2.2	PINS
1.2.3	EXPORT OF USERS AND PINS
1.2.4	IMPORT OF BALANCES
1.3	INDIVIDUAL USER AND PIN PAGES1-
1.3.1	USER PAGE1-5
1.3.2	PIN PAGE
1.4	REPORTS PAGE1-
1.5	PAYMENT PAGE
1.6	BILLING RATES PAGE
1.7	SETTINGS PAGE

### **1 WEB INTERFACE**

### **1.1 LOGGING ON TO THE CALL LOGGING WEB INTERFACE**

The call logging interface can be reached through any modern web browser. First we must locate the address of the storage unit that is currently used for call logging.

This address can be either in the Phontech 6200 Configuration Application found under the Phontech 6200 Storage Settings that is described in the Installation Manual. The address we are looking for can be found in the "Call logging unit" dropdown box as seen on the picture below.

	and the second se		
Amity - migration-manual-writing.icf	sectors to the 112 sectors "		
<u>File Edit Users Classes Groups Trunk Lin</u>	nes <u>V</u> iew <u>T</u> ools <u>H</u> elp		
. 🖕 🔄 🖾 📑 🛖 😤 🏦	6( 6) 📣 🎘 🤽 🖿 🖫 🖓 🔆 🖪	) 🕰 🗯 🎧 🏹 📈 🌺 🕋 🔶 I	
	ICC COOL Charmon Cathin an		
	ICS 6200 Storage Settings		
Classes     Sers	Call logging unit (ICS #2 (172.16.0.2) -	Pin numbers These pin numbers must be entered when dialing a	
Groups	Collinearies accession	trunk line that has pin access enabled.	
🛟 Trunk Lines	Call logging access control	Pin Description	
Extensions	Username admin		
	Password admin		
	<ul> <li>Undate user/nin balance even when</li> </ul>		
	billing meters are not enabled		
Filter Type Any -			
ICS #2 (Storage)			
	Reset		Save Discard Help
			ł.

Figure 1 - Location of Selected Storage Unit

You can also find the address of the call logging unit by looking in the "Information" menu on the front panel display on the physical unit. Click any of the navigation buttons to clear the "Zenitel" logo and click the "Enter" button when you are at the "Information" menu item. Then click "Enter" again on the "Number and IP" item. The address will now be displayed on the screen.

Once we have found the address we can access the call logging web interface by entering this address into a modern web browser. You will be greeted with a username and password prompt where you have to enter the username and password that has been configured in the Phontech 6200 Storage Settings. The default username and password are both "admin".



If the correct username and password has been entered, you will be directed to the welcome screen for the web interface as shown below.

PHONTECH 6200 CALL LOGGING UNIT
Home   Users/Pins   Reports   Payment   Billing Rates   Settings
Номе
Welcome to the Phontech 6200 Call Logging Unit web interface
Here you can manage the call logging features on your Phontech 6200 system
Users / Pins User balances and pin balances can be viewed and modified under the Users / Pins tab. Detailed reports for a single user or pin number can also be viewed here.
Reports A list of all logged reports can be found under the <i>Reports</i> tab.
Payment Pre-paid balance can be added to one or more users or pin numbers under the <i>Payment</i> tab.
Billing Rates Rates for different number patterns can be configured under the <i>Billing Rates</i> tab.
Settings Maintenance of the call logging device can be done under <i>Settings</i> tab.

Figure 2 - Phontech 6200 Call Logging Web Interface

This page displays a short description of the different pages that can be accessed on in the web interface.

### **1.2 USERS / PINS PAGE**

The Users / PINs page displays a list of all the users and PINs in the system. This is also the gateway to see call records for individual users or PINs.

#### 1.2.1 **USERS**

The first part of the page lists all the users (a user is a single extension) that are configured on the system as well as the balance on their current account. The list can be navigated in by either using the search box in the top right of the list or by using the arrows or page numbers at the bottom right of the list.

All of the users in the user list are automatically configured when users are added or removed through the configuration application for the entire system. It is not possible to add or remove users by other means. The user balances are updated automatically if trunk lines on the system are configured to use extension based balance tracking.

The right-most column in the user list is a button that will reset the given user's balance back to 0. At the bottom of the table there's a button that will reset all of the users' balances with a single click.

To see detailed call reports for a single user, click on the extension for that particular user. This will open the page for this individual user which is further explained in chapter 1.3.

Home   Users/Pins   I SER LIST	Reports   Payment	Billing Rates	Settings				
st of all users of the system and their ck on a user to see a detailed call log	current balance can be viewed b for this user. A user's balance ca	elow. In be reset by clicking the	e X in the right column.				
er accounts are automatically created	based on the users configured i	n the system.					
Show 10 🔻 entries				Search:			
Extension		Description	÷	Balance	•		
<u>101</u>	Analog 101			19.8	33 (	3	
<u>102</u>	Analog 102				0	3	
<u>103</u>	Analog 103			1(	00	3	
<u>104</u>	Analog 104				0	3	
<u>105</u>	Analog 105			:	20 (	3	
<u>106</u>	Analog 106				0	3	
<u>107</u>	Analog 107			-0.3	32 (	3	
<u>108</u>	Analog 108				0 (	3	
<u>109</u>	Analog 109			1	0	3	
<u>110</u>	Analog 110				0	3	
Showing 1 to 10 of 38 entries				Previous 1 2 3	4	٩	Vext
				Reset all user hal	ances	8	

#### 1.2.2 **PINS**

Below the user list, we find the PINs section. This lists all of the PINs that have been configured for the system. These PINs must be configured from the configuration application as described in the Installation Manual. This list can be navigated in the same way as the user list by either searching in the upper right corner or using the page numbers and buttons at the bottom right corner of the list.

The PINs list contains a button in the right-most column that will reset the balance back to 0 for the given PIN. At the bottom of the table there's a button that will reset the balance of all PINs with a single click.

To see the detailed call log for a given PIN click on the PIN number in the left most column. This will show the individual PIN page which is further explained in chapter 1.3.



	Reset all user balances 🕄			
Pins				
A list of all the configured pin Click on a pin number to see	number in the system an a detailed call log for this	d their current balance can be viewed b pin. A pin's balance can be reset by clic	elow. king the X in the right column.	
Pins can be added or remov	ed from the <i>Phontech</i> 620	0 Configuration Application under the S	torage Configuration window.	
Show 10 🔻 entries				Search:
Pin	<b>A</b>	Description		Balance 🔶 🔶
<u>1234</u>	TEST 1			90.75 🙁
<u>5678</u>	Test 2			20 🙁
Showing 1 to 2 of 2 entries				Previous 1 Next
EXPORT				
EXPORT Select what you want to expo	rt			
Users Pins				
Click to export a list of all use	rs or pins and their currer	t balance to a file		
Export PDF Export	rt XML Export CS	/		
MPORT				
Click to import user and pin I The format of these files mus	plances from a file. st match the export format			
Import XML				
igure 4 - Users /	Pins page – PI	s and Export/Import		

### 1.2.3 EXPORT OF USERS AND PINS

The export options are located the bottom of the Users / PINs page as seen in Figure 4. You can either export a list of current user balances or a list of current PIN balances. The list to export can be selected with the "Users" and "Pins" buttons in the Export section. The balances can be exported as PDF, XML or comma separated values (CSV) by clicking the corresponding button in the Export section. When the button is clicked, a download dialog with the selected format will appear and you can select where to save the exported data.

#### 1.2.4 **IMPORT OF BALANCES**

It is also possible to import balances into the call logging system. By clicking the "Import XML" button in the Import section you will be presented with an open file dialog where you can select the file with the balances to import. The format of the file must be XML and in the same format as given by the "Export XML" button. Note that this will change the balances of all the users and pins that are located in the import file. This operation cannot be undone.



### **1.3 INDIVIDUAL USER AND PIN PAGES**

#### 1.3.1 USER PAGE

The detailed user page displays the detailed call logs for a given user. The current balance of the user is displayed at the top of the page.

The list will show all calls made by this user, sorted by date. The list can be navigated with the previous and next buttons at the bottom right of the list.

	Рноитесн	6200 CAL	l Logging U	INIT			
		I PAYMENT I B	ILLING DATES   SETTI	NGS			
JSER 101							
Current balance: 19.83							
ALL LOGS							
Below is a list of all the calls	this user has been ma	de. Sorted by the newest c	all first.				
Show 10 🔻 entries							
Date/Time	Source	Destination	External	Duration	Billed	Cost	Туре
2014-07-03 14:00:38	101	8402	402	18s	10s	0.17	Billing
2014-06-25 13:36:54	101	8402	402	40s	26s	0.43	Billing
2014-06-25 13:33:40	101	8402	402	12s	5s	0.08	Billing
2014-06-25 13:31:30	101	8402	402	14s	7s	0.12	Billing
2014-06-25 13:29:13	101	8402	402	24s	7s	0.12	Billing
All records Billed o	nly					Pre	ivious Next
lick to export a list of all logg	ged calls made by this	user					
Previous month On	e month prior Cu	istom					
Start date: 01/07/2014							
End date: 31/07/2014							
Only export l	billed						
Export PDF Export	t XML Export C	SV					

#### Figure 5 - Details for User 101

The columns in the call log are as follows:

- Date/Time The date and time when the call was initiated
- **Source** -The user that initiated the call. This will always be the user we are looking at.
- **Destination** The number that was dialed.
- **External** The actual number that was dialed over the trunk line.
- **Duration** The number of seconds the user was in the call.
- **Billed** The number of seconds that should be billed for the call. This does not include the time taken by the user to dial or enter a pin number.

- **Cost** The cost of the call. This is calculated by multiplying the billed seconds by the correct rate for the destination.
- **Type** The type of record. This can either be 'Billing' or 'Documentation'. Note that calls marked as 'Documentation' will have billing seconds set to 0 as they are only present to document the call, not bill it. Those calls include calls between users inside the system and incoming calls if enabled through the Phontech 6200 Storage Configuration.

Under the call log list there's a filter button so you can change if the log should display billed calls only or include the documentation lines as well. By default it will only display the billed calls.

At the bottom of the page we have the export functions. Here you can export a report with the calls that this user has made. There are two pre-determined and one customizable option for the report period.

- **Previous month** This will take the previous month and generate a report of all the calls for that month. If the current month is September, it will generate a report from 1<sup>st</sup> of August to the 31<sup>st</sup> of August.
- **One month prior** This option will take us one month back from the current month. So if the current date is 15<sup>th</sup> of September it will generate a report from the 15<sup>th</sup> of August to the 15<sup>th</sup> of September.
- **Custom** If none of the two other options match you can choose this to input a start and end date manually.

For the two pre-determined options you can always see the report dates that will be used in the input boxes underneath the options. These will change as the different options are selected.

To actually export the report you have to click on one of the three export buttons at the bottom to choose the format which you want for your report. The available formats are "PDF", "XML" and "CSV" (comma separated values).

#### 1.3.2 **PIN PAGE**

The pin page is very similar to the User page described in chapter 1.3.1. The call log list is the same as in the User page, but note that it now displays all calls where the selected PIN number has been used. This means that the *Source* field will not always be the same as the PIN number could have been used from multiple phones. The balance associated with the PIN can be found at the top of the page.

The export functions for the PIN is the same as for the users. Choose the period for the report and click the format button of your choice and you will be presented with a download dialog for the report.



F	онолтесн	6200 CA	LL LOGGING U	INIT			
Home Users / Pin	s   Reports	PAYMENT	BILLING RATES   SETTI	NGS			
Pin 1234							
Current balance: 90.75							
_							
CALL LOGS							
Below is a list of all the calls t	nat has been made wi	th this PIN. Sorted by the	newest call first.				
Show 10 🔻 entries							
Date/Time	Source	Destination	External	Duration	Billed	Cost	Туре
2014-08-13 15:44:52	102	8402	402	26s	15s	0.25	Billing
2014-06-25 13:29:13	101	8402	402	24s	7s	0.12	Billing
All records Billed or	ıly						
XPORT							
Click to export a list of all logg	ed calls made with this	s pin number					
Previous month One	month prior Cu	stom					
Start date: 01/07/2014							
End date: 31/07/2014							
Only export b	illed						
Export PDF Export	XML Export C	SV					

### **1.4 REPORTS PAGE**

The reports page will show all call records logged by the system. The records are sorted by date. The list can be navigated with the buttons in the bottom right corner of the list.

The columns in the call log are as follows:

- Date/Time The date and time when the call was initiated
- **Source** -The user that initiated the call.
- **Destination** The number that was dialed.
- **External** The actual number that was dialed over the trunk line.
- **Duration** The number of seconds the user was in the call.
- **Billed** The number of seconds that should be billed for the call. This does not include the time taken by the user to dial or enter a pin number.
- **Cost** The cost of the call. This is calculated by multiplying the billed seconds by the correct rate for the destination.
- **Type** The type of record. This can either be 'Billing' or 'Documentation'. Note that calls marked as 'Documentation' will have billing seconds set to 0 as they are only present to document the call, not bill it. Those calls include calls between users inside the system and incoming calls if enabled through the Phontech 6200 Storage Configuration.
- **Pin** If a PIN was used, it will be displayed in this column.

HOME LUSERS / PIN		B I PAYMENT I		Settings				
EPORTS			DIELING HATEG					
ere we display a list of all the	e calls that has bee	n made on the system s	orter by the newest call f	first.				
Show 10 🔻 entries								
Date/Time	Source	Destination	External	Duration	Billed	Cost	Туре	Pin
2014-08-13 15:44:52	102	8402	402	26s	15s	0.25	Billing	1234
2014-07-15 12:02:41	107	8402	402	45s	19s	0.32	Billing	
2014-07-03 14:00:38	101	8402	402	18s	10s	0.17	Billing	
2014-06-25 13:36:54	101	8402	402	40s	26s	0.43	Billing	
2014-06-25 13:33:40	101	8402	402	12s	5s	0.08	Billing	
2014-06-25 13:31:30	101	8402	402	14s	7s	0.12	Billing	
2014-06-25 13:29:13	101	8402	402	24s	7s	0.12	Billing	1234
All records Billed or KPORT	ıly							
nort the call log report for a	given time period.							
portate call log reportion a	month prior	Custom						
Previous month One								
Previous month One art date: 01/07/2014								

#### Figure 6 - Reports Page

The list will by default only show billed entries. If you want to see all the logged calls you can change this setting by clicking the 'All records' button underneath the list.

The export functions work the same way as the export described in chapter 1.3.1 and 1.3.2. Select the period you want a report for and click one of the buttons at the bottom to get the exported report in the desired format.

### **1.5 PAYMENT PAGE**

The payment page is used to add credits to user and PIN accounts. To add to the balance of a user or a PIN, select the desired one from the two lists on this page by clicking the check boxes in the left-most column. After the user or PIN has been selected you can enter the number of credits that you want to add in the 'Amount to add' spin box at the bottom of the page. Click the 'Process' button to finish the balance update. Multiple users and pins can be updated in a single action by selecting additional users or PINs from the lists. The lists can both be navigated with the buttons and page numbers at the bottom right of each list and the selections from previous pages will remain active as a new page is viewed. The search box in the top left of each list can also be used to filter the lists.

If pre-paid billing meters are active on trunk lines the users and/or PINs in use must have a positive balance equal to that of at least 1 minute worth before they can be used to access a trunk line.

Рноитесн	6200	CALL	Logging	UNIT
----------	------	------	---------	------

#### Users / Pins BILLING RATES Номе REPORTS Settings

#### PAYMENT

To update the balance of a user or a pin select one or more from the list and enter the amount to to add at the bottom. Then press Process to update the account balance. Searching for a specific user or pin can be done in the upper right corner of the respective tables. To simply reset the account balance back to 0, go to the Users / Pin tab.

Selec	t User:

Show	10 • entries			Search:				
	User	▼	Description			÷	Balan	ce 🍦
	101	Analog 101				19.8	3	
	102	Analog 102				0.0		
	103	Analog 103				100	.0	
	104	Analog 104				0.0		
	105	Analog 105				20.0	)	
	106	Analog 106				0.0	0.0	
	107	Analog 107				-0.3	2	
	108	Analog 108			0.0			
	109	Analog 109			10.		)	
	110	Analog 110				0.0		
Showir	ng 1 to 10 of 38 en	tries	Previou	s 1	2	3	4	Next

#### Select Pins:

Show	10 • entries		Search:			
	Pin	\$	Description	\$	Bala	nce 🍦
	1234	TEST 1		90.75		
	5678	Test 2		20.0		
Showi	ng 1 to 2 of 2 entri	es	Pre	vious	1	Next

Amount to add: 0

Process

**Figure 7 - Payment Page** 

#### **1.6 BILLING RATES PAGE**

The billing rates page is where we can configure the cost rates for numbers dialed over trunk lines. You can match explicit numbers or create patterns for matching number ranges. The currently configured billing rates can be found in the list at the top of this page. The list can be navigated with the buttons and page numbers in the bottom right corner of the list.

To remove a configured rate, select it by clicking the check box in the left-most column next to the rate you want to remove and then click the 'Delete selected' button. Multiple rates can be selected for one delete operation.

Note that any change to the configured rates will not affect already logged calls. Only new calls made after the change to the rates will be affected.



PHONTECH 6	S200 CALL LOGGING UNIT		
Home   Users/Pins   Reports	PAYMENT   BILLING RATES   SETTINGS		
ILLING RATES			
The billing rates used when dialing out over trunk lines characters "X' or '_'. An "X' matches any number and a '_'	can be configured here. The rates match the external number called through a trunk line. Patterns can be cr ' matches any numbers after and including the the underscore.	reated with the	
Show 10 • entries	Search:		
<b>A</b>	Extension Pattern	Credits/	Min 🔶
default			1
12X_			50
4X_			100
Showing 1 to 3 of 3 entries	Previo	ous 1 I	Next
Delete selected			
To match the numbers 100-199 the expression     To match any numbers starting with 0047 follow Pattern: Rate: O Add rate XPORT	1XX can be used. ed by more numbers the expression 0047X_ can be used		
Click to export all the configured rates			
Export XML Export CSV			
MPORT			
Click to export all the configured rates Import Rates			
igure 8 - Billing Rates Page			

The 'default' rate will be used when no other billing rate can be matched. By default it is set to 1 credits pr. minute, but it can be changed by entering 'default' as the pattern when you add a new rate.

To add a new rate you enter the pattern you want to match in the 'Pattern' input box in the 'Add billing rate' section. You then enter the desired rate in the box below it. This rate will be the cost of a call pr. minute.

If you want to match a single number simply enter the number in the pattern field. If you want to match multiple numbers, such as a prefix or a range of numbers you have to use the pattern matching approach. Patterns can be created using the 'X' and '\_' characters. Entering 'X' will match any number, while '\_' will allow the previous number or match to be repeated multiple times. This may be used to match numbers of arbitrary lengths. Some examples are shown below.



#### Examples

- To match the numbers 100-199 the expression 1XX can be used.
- To match any numbers starting with 0047 followed by more numbers the expression 0047X\_ can be used.
- To match any number that starts with a one and is at least 3 digits long you can use the pattern '1X\_'.

The billing rates can be exported in XML and CSV format by clicking on one of the export buttons at the bottom of the page. Rates can also be imported from files in the same XML format as the exported XML format. The import function will only add additional or change existing rates. It will not delete any configured billing rates.

### **1.7 SETTINGS PAGE**

In the 'Settings' page you can get an overview of the system as well as perform backup and maintenance. You can see the number of records still available for storage in the system as well as the current firmware version.

PHONTECH 6200 CALL LOGGING UNIT
Home   Users / Pins   Reports   Payment   Billing Rates   Settings
INFORMATION
Free space shows how many records the call logging unit can hold before some needs to be deleted. Space should be freed if the indicator turns red.
Free space: 299844 / 300000 Records free
Firmware version: ics6200_1.2.1.2 Thu Sep 4 11:07:03 CEST 2014
MAINTENANCE
Deleting old reports will free up space on the device.
Delete all reports before: 15/09/2014
Delete
BACKUP AND RESTORE
The backup will contain the configured billing rates and user/pin balances. It will not contain actual billing records. Restoring a backup will delete all content and restore the records found in the backup file.
Backup Restore
A Factory reset will delete all billing and call logging related content on the device.
Factory Reset

#### Figure 9 - Settings Page

To free storage space, it is possible to remove older records stored in the system. This is done by specifying a date that you want to purge records from in the 'Maintenance' section. When you have picked a date and clicked the 'Delete' button it will delete all records that are older than the given date. Note that this operation is irreversible.

The backup and restore functions will export any rates, settings and balances into a file that can later be restored by the 'Restore' function. The actual call records are not stored in the file and cannot be restored later.

You can also perform a factory reset by clicking the 'Factory reset' button at the bottom of the page. This will delete all information visible in the web interface such as billing rates, balances and call records.





User Manual ICS 62000 Call Logging Interface

Zenitel Norway AS Bromsveien 17 3183 Horten P.O. Box 1068 Bekkajordet 3194 Horten Norway

Tel. +47 40 00 27 00 Fax. +47 33 03 16 61 phontech@zenitel.com

#### Document Number: A100K11943 / 4000089459

#### www.phontech.net

Zenitel and its subsidiaries assume no responsibility for any errors that may appear in this publication, or for damages arising from the information therein. Phontech products are developed and marketed by Zenitel. The company's Quality Assurance System is certified to meet the requirements in NS-EN ISO 9001. Zenitel reserves the right to modify designs and alter specifications without notice. ZENITEL PROPRIETARY. This document and its supplementing elements, contain Zenitel or third party information which is proprietary and confidential. Any disclosure, copying, distribution or use is prohibited, if not otherwise explicitly agreed in writing with Zenitel. Any authorized reproduction, in part or in whole, must include this legend: Zenitel – All Rights Reserved